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EDUCATIO IN HOMEOPATHIC MEDICINE DURING
1918—1920

. n} W. A Dewey, M. D, .
Seorclar“/ of Councik on Medéoal Education of the American Institute of Bomrppathy.

'
E

“ Education-in the homeopathic schools of medicine is -under the
« direct guidance of the American Institute of Hoemeopathy, and the
luluxrements of the Americalr Federation of State Medical Examin-
ing-Boards are fulfitled in all details, so that graduates may comply :
~ with the requirements ofall the Qtates and Territorial possessions.
~ The Council on Medical Education of the homeoputhlc national or-
ganization lecognwes only acceptable schools, requiring all to con-
form to a minimum standard. This procedure has tended to reduce
. the number of colleges und to improve their quahty
- At the present time homeopathic medicine is taught in Bost,o'n
niversity School of Medicine; New York Homeopathic Medical
i_/‘l(})}ege and Flower Hospital; }lahnemunn Medical College of Phila-
phia; Homeopathic Medical Schoo} of the University of Michi-
gan; Homeopathic Megical School of. Ohio State University ; and
Hahnemann Medical College and Ht)spltul of Chicago.
Two'other State universities include in their medical ulrnculums
the teaching of the homeopathic system of materia° medica and .
therapeutics, namely, Iowa State University Medical School and the
medical school of the University of California.
~  In common with all melical schools, those of the homeopathlc sys- -
_tem have suffered during the biennium 1918-1920-f¢om a fewer’num-
ber of students, due to two circumstances, the war and the added two
years of college work as a preliminary requirement.” The 1918 fresh-
‘men classes were small, as the armistice was not signed until several -
- .weeks after the o]penmg of the college sessions,’ suﬂ‘iclently long to
make it impossible to secure credit for a full year ’s work by matricu-
lating at that time. In most schools the senior snd - ‘junior ‘classes

were depleted by the dmft .and thgsaphomore (;Mgses mg»rl!y wmuked 3

thereby. o
In 1919, however, there wis 4 marﬂw& inotease in the em;erimg

- ¢asses of Ml our: schools, and the promise of mtich greater mcres,se

for 1920 is bright.
5«»@9’—21
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A survey of the various schools is of interest, a5 showing the actual
" status during the biennium 1918-1920: "
Boston University School of Medicine, Boston, Mass—This school
had a total of 60 students in 1918-19 and 88 students in 1919-20,
«the increase being for the most part in the freshman class. This in-
stitution is in intimate connection with the Massachusetts Homeo-
pathic Hospital, and furnishes postgraduate work to many net .
-enumerated above, which refers solely to undergraduates and excludes *
postgraduate and special students to the number of 25. Evans Me-
morial Hospital, with 30 beds; Haynes Memorial Hospital for
Contagious Diseases, with 150 beds; and Westboro State Ilomeo-
pathic Hospital for the Insane, with 1,300 beds, are afliliated with t
school. During the past two years there has been improvement ‘in
the teaching of the fundamental branches of medicine, especially in *
anatomy, in which a new system of teaching has been employed.
New York HHomeopathid Medical Collége and Flower Hospital,

- New York—This institution is now in its 60th year and has always‘
ranked as one of the largest institutions of the homeopathic schaol
in respect to the number of students enrolled. 1Its classes, however,
have diminished from the causes mentioned, the war and additional
requirement of two years of college, work. This remark applies to -
all New York schools. The New York board of regents’ ceitificate
is necessary for admission. - . ‘ -,
The number of students attending during the past two years was
as follows: 1918-19—freshmen 10, sophomores 54, juniors 36, seniors
42, total 142; graduates in 1919, 29. Year 1919-20—freshmen 31.
sophomores 18, juniors 43, seniors 34, total, 126 ; graduates in 1920, 31.
This school, besides its own hospital, has affiliation with the Metro-
politan Hospital, the New York Ophthalmic Hospital, and the Wil-
lard Parker Hospital. Maternity instruction is also furnished by
the Lying-in Hospital, the Maternity Hespital, and the Sloan Hos-
pital for Women. There are 18 full-time men on' the #uculty.
Hahnemann Medical Ccllege of Philadelphig.—Hahnemann Medi-
. “cal College, of Philgdelphia, has two departménts, a school of medi-
cine und a school of science, which conforms to the request of the
Pennsylvania Bureau of Medival Education and Licensure to the
medical colleges of the State to give the reqaired instruction in
physics, 'chemistry, and biology. This enables this institution to
offer & combined course yielding the degrees of B. S. and M. D. in
si¥ years under & legal charter. “*}‘his is the custom *\with mogt'State’

‘ufiversity schools. ™ .

A This i5 $he oldest homeopathic medical ?ci‘)lleg:e,.‘ in the world, and
this ' report ‘comprises the severty-first and seventy-second annual
" sessions, the attendance in the medical school being 144 and 133, re-

o
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‘'spectively,‘and in the school of science 60'and 78, the totals being
204 for 1918-19 and 223 for 1919-20, . A B =l
This institution is epdowed to the amount of $325,000, and the
property valuation is approximately $3,000,000. There is a loan
fund of $40.000, the income of which is lent to deserving students,
The school places u limit of 40 students in each class. Besides the
hospital intimately connected with the college, it affiliates with St.
Luke’s, Children’s, and: West” Philadelphia Hospitals, and with the
Allentown State Homeopathic Hdspital for the Insane. In these .

and other hospitals, approved by the touncil, graduates-secure the

* hospital intern year required by the Pennsylvania law as a pre:
requisite ‘to the recelving the license to practice in the State. -
Homeapathic J[wtlic'af College of Ohio State University, Columbus,
Ohig—~This college was the result of the union of the homeopathic
schools of Cleveland and. Cincinnati with the University of Ohio in
1814 and is one of the 10 colleges and sthools of that university and
is Jocated on the, university campus at Columbus. Jhe first unit
‘of 2 new hospital ‘was opened in 1916 and has accommodations for
G0 “patients, in addition to”the old hospital, which accomimodates
about 30 patients. ' . : '
The chief event in the biennial périod just closing is a gift of
$400,000 from Mr. Charles F. Kettering, of Dayton, which is to be
devoted to scientific' investigation of disease according to homeo-
pathic methods, . A fine lnboratory devoted.to homeopathic research,
the best in the omeoputhic school of medicine; already exists in this
college, made possible by previous gifts from the. same generous
donor. . The reSults of the work done in this laboratory as far as
published have attracted much attention in the thedical world.
HHomeapathic Medical Sehool of the U niversity of Michigan, Ann

Arbor.—The oldest homeopathic metlical «ollege 'connected with a

State university was established 45 years a;zo . At the time of its
- establishment it had two teachers; its’ growth has been steady: and
at present there are five full professors, two assistant professors,
three instructors, and six assistants. gll of whom idre full-tie men.
This school hys ever maintained its position as one of the leading
medical educational institutions of the homeopathic school. ~
The developments of the past two years incﬂlude the erection of a
new Childen’s Hospital, accommodating 70 patients, 'whi(cm was
ocourring in the students’ United States Army fimd Navy training
‘corps conpected with the university, ahd after the ‘ibsidetice of the’
‘epidemic it Tevertéd to its original purpose. :

Haknemann. Medical College and: Hospital, of Q’hz’caga,,lllj.%

_opened in Noyember, 1918, for the ‘reception of influenzs patienty

Hahnemann Medical Collega and Hospitsl of Chicaga has beeome

b O T s g
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"' the medical department of the University of Valparaiso, The college

and hospital are owned by the same board of trustees, amd the teach-

= ing staff of the hospital is the teaching faculty of the college. The

out-patient department is conductéd by the college for the hospital.

The trustees have a fund of $337,000. the ‘income of which may be

" used in accordance with their judgment for the variohs departments
under their jurisdiction. ' o .

" The number of students for 1918-19 was 44, and 46 for 1919-20.

The college has been in existence since 1860, and has-a large and

¢ influential alumnus body which eontributes each year liberally to its

maintenance. Itsis one of the well-equipped institutions of the homeo-
pathic system of medicine. A ; " .

State University of lowa—The College of Homeopathic Medicine
of the State University of Towa was merged with the College of
Mediciy of the State university by an act of the legislature of 1919,

: . to take’effect at the opening of the cffege vear 1918-20. The act of
the legislature— = - S T
authorized and directed the hoard of educatlon to establish and maintain in
the college of medicine a chair of homeopathic materla mediea and therapeutics ;
that suitable hours should be establighed . in ;Im clinie, and that during such
hours a8 were occupied by the department of muteria medica and therupeutics’
there should be no other lectures or recitationg in the coliege of medicine,

The board also ordered that the head of the department of materia
medica and therapeutics have the same privileges and rights as the
Kead of any other department of the college of medicine. o

The legislature also authorized that rooms and other equipments
be provided so that the department could use elinies and have as many
patients as they desired.at the hospital. . g ;

All this was faithfully carried out during the year 1919-30 as far
as could be under the existing conditions of stringercy of fuel. Ten
students registered for the department, but many others attended;

" so that homeopathic materia medica and therapeutics were taught
more hours and to a larger number of students that in recent previous
years. By 4 ' _

Unirersity of California, San Francisco, Calif.—Hahnemann Medi-

- cal College -of the Pacific, an institution of some 30 vears' stand-

| ~, ing. with fine properties consisting of college buildings and a

" hospital of 100 beds, effected an agreement with the medical school
of the University .of California whereby homeopathic medicine
might b tanght therein, - This plan is working. out in o satisfactory
manner. . Therg ar¢ two homeapathic chairs; homgopathic materia .
medica and applied homeopathic therapeutics: each with assistants
- and hospital accommodations. N :
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RESUME. . : !

There were 45 more students in homeopathic. medical colleges in
“1919-20 than in 1918-19, and the increase in the freshman class was
the largest. The sophomore class was the sfgallest, which was
the ‘one entering after the declarntion of w,uf_. There has been
much improvement in hospitals, laboratories, and  facilities in
all the schools, and the aim of educating practical physiciuns rather
than scientists and spechlists- has been carried on successfully
inall. ~ : e c .
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